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Independent Auditors’ Report



SULLIVAN, ROGERS & COMPANY, LLC

Corporate Place I, Suite 204 + 99 South Bedford Street
—Butlingten,- Massachusetts 01803-- - ——

P+ 781-229-5600 F «781-229-5610 www.sullivan-rogers.com

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Bourne, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts,
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Bourne,
Massachusetts” management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As more fully described in Note 13, the Town has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 8, 2010, on our
consideration of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Governmental Auditing Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report in considering the
results of our audit.



The management’s discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 13) and general fund budgetary
comparison and certain pension information (located on pages 61 through 65) are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

%,V%&Q_M,Lu,

June 8, 2010
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

As management of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts (1'own), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $99,243,768 (net
assets). Of this amount, $18,198,688 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» The Town’s total net assets increased by $372,138.

> As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances totaling $16,748,806, an increase of $5,975,200 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
$16,559,000 represents unreserved fund balance of the general fund, nonmajor special revenue, capital

projects and permanent funds. The major governmental capital projects funds’ deficit totaling $2,683,012
will be funded in future fiscal years via long-term debt and state grant reimbursements.

» Atthe end of the fiscal year, undesignated fund balance for the general fund totaled $5,931,722, or 10.6
percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

» The Town’s total bonded debt increased by $8,778,419 during the fiscal year; $13,502,165 of general
obligation bond were issued during the year.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements, which
consists of the following three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned
but unused vacation leave, etc.).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Governmental activities include general government, public safely, education, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation and debt service (interest). Business-type activities include the Town’'s sewer and
landfill operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

1. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well
as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 12 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general, community preservation (special revenue) and elementary school construction (capital
project) funds, each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 9 governmental funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation titled nonmajor governmental funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-23 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains two types of proprietary funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-

wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer and landfill operations, both
of which are considered to be major funds.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Internal service funds arc an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town's
various functions. The Town uses an internal service fund to account for its health insurance risk-financing
activities. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements but are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 of this report.

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those

funds are not available to support the Town's programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
that used for proprietary funds.

Private-purpose trust funds and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in
the fiduciary fund financial statements under the captions “private purpose trust funds” and “agency funds”,
respectively.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-28 of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29-
59 of this report.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information. Presented in this information is the budget comparison for the general fund and
certain pension information, which can be found on pages 61-65.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements,

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
Town’s assets exceeded liabilities by $99,243,768 at the close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Governmenial Activitiss Businoss-Typo Activitios Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets
Current assels. ............cooivveniiiiennn, $ 33,140,854 & 33,557,710 $ 7,061,022 § 11,785,788  § 40,201,876  $ 45,343,498
Noncurrent assets (excluding
capital assets)...............cccouuniens 8,218,618 8,883,229 3,757,425 2,436,134 11,976,043 11,319,363
Capital assets (net)..........cocveennnnnenne 94,953,331 86,901,330 16,088,433 14,525,196 111,041,764 101,426,526
Total assels...ccueuveriirineinnens 136,312,803 129,342,269 26,906,880 28,747,118 163,219,683 158,089,387
Liabilities
Current liabilities
(excluding debt)...........cccoerernn. 5,459,962 6,974,841 652,079 1,472,948 6,112,041 8,447,789
Noncurrent liabilities
(excluding debt)..........cccooveeeeen. 4,503,025 1,624,839 3,398,086 2,880,249 7,901,111 4,505,088
Current debt..........coovvivieniinninnnnn, 7,460,558 10,700,928 1,638,850 3,103,354 9,099,408 13,804,282
Noncurrent debl......ocevieeiiinneniinnnn, 33,674,082 28,322,475 7,189,273 4,138,123 40,863,355 32,460,598
Total liabilities............coivivnnin. 51,097,627 47,623,083 12,878,288 11,594,674 63,975,915 59,217,757
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
(net of related debt) 66,059,306 61,409,614 9,745,566 9,011,306 75,804,872 70,420,920
Restricted,siivizisivammiasasiiaiinaisasvain 5,240,208 2,860,117 - - 5,240,208 2,860,117
Unrestricted. ... ivecerrrersanrmsensiness 13,915,662 17,449,455 4,283,026 8,141,138 18,198,688 25,590,593
Total net assets................counnin, $ 85,215,176  § 81,719,186 § 14,028,592 $ 17,152,444  $ 99,243,768 % 98,871,630

The largest portion of the Town’s net assets (76.4%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, construction
in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure),
less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets (5.3%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (18.3% or $18,198,688) may be used to
meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount, $13,915,662 may be used to
support governmental activities and $4,283,026 may by used to support business-type activities.

Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Town’s total net assets increased by $372,138, compared to an increase
of $11,446,596 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Revenues
Program Reventes:
Charges for seTvices. . ..uumriciriiueciiniess i irecancrnens
Operaling grants and contributions...............coeee.
Capital grants and contributions.........c.cucumeriinnens
Gernieral Revenues:
Real estate, personal property taxes and liens.........

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes

Penalties and interest on taxes............c.coiiiie.
Payments in lieu of taxes..........cccovveeriinieiininnna
Community preservation surcharges........cccven e,
Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs.zivacasiimisisshisnmsrs
Unrestricted investment income. .. ......ccccveiireienns

Premium from issuance of bonds and notes

Expenses
General GOVEMMEN. .. uiviuerenrinrersienrarneranrernsranrers
Public safety...caivizziissive: asvemindanbaenaniinisimas asaniasinie
Educabion.........coeeivemmmeiniciceeeianraienas
Public works.i. .. cavsimesimsiitetsith oo adidh oo 5
Health and human services.

Culture and recreation

Total eXPenses. .. ...cvivrviaeriineisiiimiiiineanciaaes

Change in net assels before transfers............cccocveciiiiiies
Transfers, net:wi.o, it s s im i i s

Change in Net assels. . ... ..o

Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of Year.......cooiciumiiieiiiermnn i

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
4,433,915 4,542,583 § 8,860,806 % 10,517,829 § 13,294,721 L3 15,060,412
13,980,017 15,837,055 37,680 504,765 14,017,697 16,341,820
6,667,537 7,143,876 - 6,667,537 7,143,876
33,685,674 32,475,955 . - 33,685,674 32,475,955
2,294,799 2,374,273 - - 2,294,799 2,374,273
299,483 264,338 - 299,483 264,338
13,998 9,338 - 13,998 9,338
985,939 921,002 - 985,939 921,002
2,566,691 2,682,633 - - 2,566,691 2,682,633
253,462 542,666 - - 253,462 542,666
32,822 30,149 - - 32,822 30,149
357,930 - (22,914) - 335,016 -
42,901 75,780 - - 42,901 75,780
65,615,168 66,899,648 8,875,572 11,022,594 74,490,740 77,922,242
4,285,360 2,563,481 4,285,360 2,563,481
12,762,491 10,743,083 12,762,491 10,743,083
39,779,038 36,454,161 39,779,038 36,454,161
3,740,548 3,026,842 - 3,740,548 3,026,842
1,345,358 1,414,534 - - 1,345,358 1,414,534
1,663,544 1,158,781 - - 1,663,544 1,158,781
1,469,492 1,486,140 - - 1,469,492 1,486,140
- - 958,765 892,835 958,765 892,835
- 8,114,006 8,735,789 8,114,006 8,735,789
65,045,831 56,847,022 9,072,771 9,628,624 74,118,602 66,475,646
569,337 10,052,626 (197,199) 1,393,970 372,138 11,446,596
2,926,653 2,858,256 (2,926,653) (2,858,256) -
3,495,990 12,910,882 (3.123,852) (1,464,286) 372,138 11,446,596
81,719,186 68,808,304 17,152,444 18,616,730 98,871,630 87,425,034
85,215,176 81,719,186  $ 14,028,592 % 17,152,444  § 99,243,768 $ 98,871,630

Governmental activities increased the Town's net assets by $3,495,990. In the prior year, governmental activities
increased the Town’s net assets by $12,910,882. The key elements of this change are the first year implementation
of GASB Statement # 45 related to other postemployment benefits ($2,591,384) and an increase in employee

benefit payments ($916,000).

Business-type activities decreased the Town’s net assets by $3,123,852. In the prior year, business-type activities
decreased the Town's net assets by $1,464,286. The key elements of this change are the first year implementation

of GASB Statement # 45 related to other postemployment benefits ($172,013) and a substantial change in fees

collected at the landfill, which is a reflection of the current market conditions.

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Fund Financial Statemenl Analysis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
$16,748,806, an increase of $5,975,200 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $12,103,000 represents
undesignated fund balance of the general fund, nonmajor special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds.
The major governmental capital projects funds’ deficit totaling $2,683,012 will be funded in future fiscal years via
long-term debt and state grant reimbursements. The remainder of fund balance is designated or reserved to
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed to:

Liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($1,762,370)
Perpetual permanent funds ($46,541)

Other specific purposes ($1,063,843)

Stabilization ($3,597,133)

Fund a portion of the fiscal year 2010 operating budget ($859,245)

VVVYVY

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, undesignated fund
balance of the general fund totaled $5,931,722, while total fund balance was $8,553,337. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both undesignated fund balance and total fund balance to
total general fund expenditures and transfers out. Undesignated fund balance represents 10.6% of total general
fund expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 15.3% of that same amount.

The balance of the Town'’s general fund increased by $128,987 during fiscal year 2009. Although the Town
recognized an approximate $3,169,000 budgetary surplus (excluding encumbrances and continuing
appropriations), approximately $3,045,000 of reserves was utilized for spending during the year.

Financial highlights of the Town'’s other major governmental funds are as follows:

The fund balance of the community preservation fund (special revenue) increased by $2,281,695 during the
current fiscal year. The fund’s receipts included community preservation surcharges ($983,100),
intergovernmental revenue ($680,858), investment income ($81,792) and proceeds of long-term debt ($1,550,000).
Expenditures totaling approximately $361,000 were incurred during the year and a transfer of $661,771 was made
to the general fund to cover community preservation related debt service.

The fund balance of the elementary school construction fund increased by $1,650,327 during the current fiscal
year. The fund incurred expenditures of $9,672,557 related to construction and received a portion of the
Massachusetts School Building Authority’s capital grant totaling $6,322,884 and proceeds of long-term debt
totaling $5,000,000.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Proprietary funds

The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the sewer and landfill enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $612,272 and
$3,670,754, respectively. The sewer fund had a decrease in net assets for the year of $224,226, whereas the landfill
fund had a decrease of $2,899,626. Other factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Town’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget of $52,795,190 was increased by $1,471,158 (2.8%) during the fiscal year. The
following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source

Transfer to stabilization fund.............c.ccccooiiin i, $ 887,462 Undesignated fund balance
Electric wiring Keith Field............c..ccoooiii v 97,000 Undesignated fund balance
Annual dred@ing...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii 85,000 Waterways special revenue fund
Peebles School - boiler repalcement.............cccooovieriniieiiiniie e 85,000 Undesignated fund balance
Wastewater study...........ocooiiiiiii 65,000 Undesignated fund balance
Town hall ro0f rePairs........co..viiiiiii e, 50,000 Undesignated fund balance
Department of Public Works.............cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 33,800 Undesignated fund balance
Municipal facilities use and reuse................cc..cccnininnnnn 24,000 Undesignated fund balance
Survey landings and remove abandoned moorings............................. 20,000 Waterways special revenue fund
POlICE CTUISEIS . L.t iere ettt e e e, 20,000 Undesignated fund balance
Unpaid Bills.......oooii 16,346 Undesignated fund balance
Department of Natural Resources pump out boat...............oovvevrevinniin 16,000 Waterways special revenue fund
Tax title. o 15,000 Undesignated fund balance
Economic development..............c.oocoiiiiiiiii i e 15,000 Undesignated fund balance
Jonathan Bourne Public Library building equipment and supplies......... 10,000 Undesignated fund balance
Shellfish propagation............coovviviiiieiiiniiei e 9,000 Undesignated fund balance
Selectmen contracted SEIVICES.........cvuivrieiirier et e e e, 7,500 Undesignated fund balance
Data Processing.........ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 7,250 Undesignated fund balance
Building inspector copy machine..........ccoovcvviiiiiiiiiiiicon e, 4,200 Undesignated fund balance
Inspector salaries. ..o, 3,600 Undesignated fund balance
Total INCrease..........oiviiiiiiii e $ 1,471,158

During the year, other financing sources (uses) exceeded budgetary estimates, while revenues and expenditures
and continuing appropriations were less than budgeted appropriations, resulting in a positive budget to actual
variance of approximately $1,407,000.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

The Town'’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled $111,041,764 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, other and
infrastructure. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled 9.5% (a 8.0%
increase for governmental activities and a 1.5% increase for business-type activities).
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Major capital agsct cvents that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

Elementary school construction in progress ($9,813,661)
DPW vehicles ($482,023)

Public safety computers and equipment ($320,901)
DPW equipment ($206,507)

Public safety vehicles ($170,111)

Land improvements ($157,052)

Field upgrades construction in progress ($125,000)
Infrastructure ($87,791)

Greenhouse repairs ($71,795)

School bus ($45,500)

Road project construction in progress ($8,602)

VVVVVVVVVVY

The following table summarizes the Town’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Land.......coooiiiniiinnine e, $ 25,849,345 $ 25,885,619 § 2,209,658 $ 2,209,658 28,059,003 $ 28,095,277
Construction in progress........... 22,982,245 13,176,739 2,849,419 3,522,656 25,831,664 16,699,395
Land improvements................. 2,463,532 2,139,503 158,380 158,927 2,621,912 2,298,430
Buildings and improvements...... 36,591,292 38,290,789 4,737,221 2,120,859 41,328,513 40,411,648
Machinery and equipment......... 3,935,566 4,118,756 1,776,161 1,900,218 5,711,727 6,018,974
Other......ooo v, - - 139,749 209,624 139,749 209,624
Infrastructure............. AT I 3,131,351 3,289,924 4,217,845 4,403,254 7,349,196 7,693,178
Total capital assets...................  § 94,953,331 $ 86,901,330 % 16,088,433 % 14,525,196 % 111,041,764  § 101,426,526

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 43-45 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was $45,962,763, which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:

The Town’s total bonded debt increased by $8,778,419 (23.6%) during the current fiscal year. During the fiscal
year, the Town issued $13,502,165 of general obligation bonds.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tatal

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
General obligation bonds.......... $ 36,693,465 $ 30,916,450 $ 8,417,000 % 5305,000 $ 45110465 $ 36,221,450
MWPAT notes..........cooovvainninn 441,175 471,417 411,123 491,477 852,298 962,894
Total bonds and notes............... $ 37,134,640 $ 31,387,867 % 8,828,123 % 5796477 % 45,962,763 $ 37,184,344

The Town has an AA- rating from Standard & Poor’s for its most recent issuance of long-term debt on September
15, 2009.

Additional information on the Town'’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 on pages 48-53 of this report.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town Hall, 24 Perry Avenue,
Bourne, Massachusetts 02532.
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STATEMENT OF NFT ASSFTS

JUNE 30, 2009
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............coiciiiiir st senees $ 16,445,998 S 3,591,675 20,037,673
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7,442,336 2,267,629 9,709,965
INVeSEMENtS ..coeiecsiniiniiririaanrinnns 2,103,761 - 2,103,761
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Real estate and personal property taxes... 1,694,572 - 1,694,572
Tax ens....cciesiaminienmniaeens 402,552 64,071 466,623
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.... 327,439 - 327,439
Community preservation surcharges. 44,590 - 44,590
User charges... = 1,082,293 1,082,293
Special assessmentls.. 14,754 5,254 20,008
Departmental and other.. 443,295 - 443,295
Intergovernmental.... 2,859,357 50,100 2,909,457
Working capital deposit, 1,362,200 - 1,362,200
TOtal CUTTENT 85EES.. 1. . iuviiiiriiiresiicrseiianatesneserennsaeensnrernressnsernresanns 33,140,854 7,061,022 40,201,876
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents........... . - 1,659,793 1,659,793
Restricted investments,.....c.cccuvn.... - 1,722,266 1,722,266
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Real estate tax deferrals... 54,187 - 54,187
Special assessments..... 240,165 206,078 446,243
Intergovernmental. 7,403,774 169,288 7,573,062
Tax foreclosures............ 520,492 - 520,492
Capital assets not being depreciated.... 48,831,590 5,059,077 53,890,667
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.., 46,121,741 11,029,356 57,151,097
Total NONCUTTENE ASSEES. ..o uiuiiviiiuisirissciiiiiiiiiis e esernieransssanarsnnes 103,171,949 19,845,858 123,017,807
TOtAl ASSEES. ....vueivuiisiareransetnientireresaeieteiaeraeensessssrrnrnenrerns 136,312,803 26,906,880 163,219,683
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable..... 2,610,347 454,619 3,064,966
Accrued payroll.... 1,456,161 18,847 1,475,008
Tax refunds payable. 135,378 - 135,378
Other liabilities..... 18,789 = 18,789
Accrued interest. 364,281 163,874 528,155
Accrued health claims payable.... 662,601 - 662,601
Compensated absences...... 212,405 14,739 227,144
Short-term notes payable... 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Long-term bonds and notes payable.. 3,460,558 1,638,850 5,099,408
Total current Jabilities..........ccuiiiiicieiinictieiieesirieee e vnesssees s 12,920,520 2,290,929 15,211,449
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB obligation. 2,591,384 172,013 2,763,397
Landfill closure... - 3,093,428 3,093,428
Compensated absences. 1,911,641 132,645 2,044,286
Long-term bonds and notes payable........c...cccocoviiiiamiinrinviresiinnssirnesriinnoas 33,674,082 7,189,273 40,863,355
Total noncurrent Habilities........curimrisimriiisniiii s isiansisiaraiaies 38,177,107 10,587,359 48,764,466
Total liabiliHesss: i, iy, asnsaiuasusis. o« ad rwadesiavants o duions dRERER o 2 51,097,627 12,878,288 63,975,915
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debl.........cccveirivriveiererireerieinsinneanens 66,059,306 9,745,566 75,804,872
Restricted for:
Community preservation............. 4,051,260 - 4,051,260
Permanent funds:
Expendable,,.........c...iiiiiiiiinei i e 78,564 - 78,564
Nonexpendable.......... 46,541 - 46,541
Other specific purposes.. 1,063,843 - 1,063,843
Unrestricted.......... T 13,915,662 4,283,026 18,198,688
Total net assels...... e R ARESYE LY s (45 S RN« P REAANNBEO ¢ e 010 54 NS $ 85,215,176 % 14,028,592 § 99,243,768

See notes to basic financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government.................cocoeeeeinnnn, $ 4,285,360 $ 431,520 % 106,554 - % (3,747,286)
Public safety......c.cccoviiiiiiiiiiiinneiiiinianns 12,762,491 2,953,986 334,748 - (9,473,757)
Education..........cocoeviiviiinininiean 39,779,038 866,630 12,820,131 5,986,679 (20,105,598)
Public works......... CmE e 3,740,548 11,997 95,088 - (3,633,463)
Health and human services...................... 1,345,358 68,163 204,944 - (1,072,251)
Culture and recreation............................ 1,663,544 101,619 33,344 680,858 (847,723)
Debt service ~ interest.............c...coeevvnvinnss 1,469,492 - 385,208 - (1,084,284)
Total governmental activities............... 65,045,831 4,433,915 13,980,017 6,667,537 (39,964,362)
Business-type activities:
SOWET ..ottt 958,765 844,831 4,669 - (109,265)
Landfill..........ccooooiiiiniiiiii 8,114,006 8,015,975 33,011 - (65,020)
Total business-type activities............... 9,072,771 8,860,806 37,680 - (174,285)
Total primary government.....................ccooees $ 74,118,602 $ 13,294,721 $ 14,017,697 $ 6,667,537 $ (40,138,647)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITILS (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net assets:
Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page)................. $ (39,964,362 $ (174,285) $ (40,138,647)
General revenues:
Real estate, personal property taxes and tax liens........ 33,685,674 - 33,685,674
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes............c.covuvvenns 2,294,799 - 2,294,799
Penalties and interest on taxes..........c.covvvvvviirenrrenn, 299,483 - 299,483
Payments in liett of taxes.............cccoeviiniviiiiniinennnn, 13,998 B 13,998
Community preservation surcharges...................... 985,939 - 985,939
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs...........cc.coccciiniinii 2,566,691 - 2,566,691
Unrestricted investment income..........c.ocvvvvvivininnnnns 253,462 - 253,462
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes............... 32,822 - 32,822
Gain/ (loss) on sale of capital assets.......................... 357,930 (22,914) 335,016
Other. o 42,901 - 42,901
Transfers, N ...........ooiiiiiiiii e, 2,926,653 (2,926,653) -
Total general revenues and transfers...................cceeuene.. 43,460,352 (2,949,567) 40,510,785
Change innet assets.............ovveeviiiieierieiirieeseeenans 3,495,990 (3,123,852) 372,138
Net assets - beginning of year.............cccooveiiiiiiiiininnnnan. 81,719,186 17,152,444 98,871,630
Net assets - end of year.............cocevviiiiiiiiiniiin i $ 85,215,176 % 14,028,592 $ 99,243,768
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009
Elementary
Community School
ASSETS General Preservation Construction
Cash and cash equivalents.............oocoiiiiiiiior e $ 10725916 $ - % -
INVESIMENS. ... i e e e R - - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes..........c.cvuvivriieiereiiiiininennneiininnenns 1,694,572 K -

Real estate taxX deferrals. .. ... coiriiiiiiiiiii et ie e ee e s e e rn e e ene e aneeas 54,187 - =

i xslIETNS . FErTT T T . . T o T o TR TTEER B0, et e eeeeeaieemnneeenannans 394,037 8,515 -

Motor vehicle and Other @XCISe tAXES.........iuvieiriritieee e e rarres 327,439 - -

Community preservation sUrcharges.............ccoevviivnerieiniiniriineieneeee - 44,590 -

SPecial @SSESSMENES. .. .uvu.iiiiiiiiiie ettt 7,223 - -

Departmental and other................oooiviii e, - - -

Intergovernmental.............cooivi i 8,076,844 - 1,965,727
TaX FOTECIOSUTES. . 1.\ ettt erees ettt ee e 520,492 - -
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents............c.ccoooiiiniiiiiin - 4,010,849 589,566
TOTAL ASSETS......oiiiiii e e e $ 21,800,710 $ 4,063,954 § 2,555,293
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Warrants payable..............ooooiiiiiiiii e $ 737,433 % 12,694 $ -

Accriied PAYTOIl. ... 1,438,567 - -

Tax refunds payable.............cccoiiiiiiiii 135,378 - -

Other Habilities. ......v.iu i 18,789 - -

Deferred TeVeNUE. ..ottt 10,846,258 53,105 1,238,305

Accrued short-term INTerest........ov. i, 70,948 - "

Short-term notes payable..................oooieiiii - - 4,000,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES. . .10t ctiittriiiie it et se e s eeesa e e e as s esene s s sneas 13,247,373 65,799 5,238,305
FUND BALANCES:

Reserved for:

Encumbrances and continuing appropriations.................cccceeeeeeeevnnnn... 1,762,370 - -
Perpetual permanent funds..............ccccceiiiiniiicininiiiiii s - - -
Other specific PUIPOSES. .........occiiiiiiiiiiiii i - 2 4
Unreserved:
Designated for stabilization..................cooeveiiiiiiiiniii e - = -
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures.................ccccoeeoeeeinnnn... 859,245 - -
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund.........coooiiiii 5,931,722 -
Special revenue funds................ueiivieiiiiiiii e - 3,998,155 -
Capital projects fUnds.........c.c.coiiesirie e - - (2,683,012)
Permanent funds...............ccoiiiiiii i = 5 #
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. .....cottiiiiiiiersiririneeessesessisnsssessesessersnsnesssases 8,553,337 3,998,155 (2,683,012)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.........coooiviiiiiiiiiiiiineee e, $ 21,800,710 $ 4,063,954 $ 2,555,293

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

$ 2,528,561 $ 13,254,477
2,103,761 2,103,761

- 1,694,572

- 54,187

- 402,552

- 327,439

- 44,590

247,696 254,919

443,295 443,295

220,559 10,263,130

- 520,492

2,841,921 7,442,336

$ 8,385,793 $ 36,805,750
g 796,883 % 1,547,010
17,594 1,456,161

- 135,378

- 18,789

690,990 12,828,658

- 70,948

- 4,000,000

1,505,467 20,056,944

5 1,762,370

46,541 46,541

1,063,843 1,063,843
3,597,133 3,597,133

- 859,245

- 5,931,722

1,557,863 5,556,018
536,382 (2,146,630)

78,564 78,564

6,880,326 16,748,806

$ 8,385,793 § 36,805,750
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GOVERNMENTAL 'UNDS
STATEMENT Ol REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Elementary
Community School
General Preservation Construction
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes...........ccoovvvvevrvreeiieiiinssiinnnneess, $ 33,293,404 % - % -
Motor vehicle and other eXCiSe taXeS.........ovuieieeniineeie e e v 2,322,056 - =
TaAX OIS .. ettt 117,987 3,029 -
Payments in LIt Of aXES.........vuiiiiiiireeiiiiii e ia e ee e 13,998 - -
Community preservation SUrcharges.................uuviiiiniininniiiienineneeee, - 983,100 -
Charges for ServiCes............cciiiiiiiiii e - = =
Intergovernmental ...........ovureei vt 12,675,319 680,858 6,322,884
Special @ssesSMENES.............ooiiiiiiiiiiiicii e 902 = -
Penalties and interest 0N EAXES. ... ..v.vv.ieiriieiiieern i eee e e eaaans 293,890 5,593 -
Licenses and Permits..... ... uuuuueiiieiiiiiieeiririiiieiee e ettt vee e 486,235 - =
Fines and forfeitures 151,652 - -
Departmental and Other..........c.ooiiiiiiic e e 1,389,639 - -
CONETTDUHONS 1 t1uevvveeraesisessaessnsbs e s sse et et ssasss s sessa et s ssee st aensesianssn - - =
[NV ESTINENE ITICOTIIE. .oy eeiritiyinssrassenrnrnr s s ssenssrsesssenssensnernsee s raressenssenssns 203,253 81,792 -
TOTAL REVENUES. ...ttt e 50,948,335 1,754,372 6,322,884
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVErNMENT....... ... ittt ee e e eeeeneaaeeen 2,390,284 10,988 -
Public safety...........ooooiiiii e, 7,633,710 = =
EAUCAtION. ..t 21,377,540 - 9,672,557
PUBLC WOTKS. ..o, 2,491,483 - -
Health and human Services..............ovvvviieie e 779,490 45,881 -
Culture and recreation...........c..viveiee it e e e e 738,785 304,037 -
Pension Denefits.. ... .....coiieiiiiir e, 6,140,771 - -
Employee benefits...........ooueuiriiiiimmmiiieiiiiinee 6,250,116 - =
Property and liability insurance 724,228 - -
State and county charges............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e 2,035,338 - =
Debt service:
Principal......ooi . 3,065,392 E -
Interest.. ..... ... cosxmassmanes rram s S R 1,509,708 - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ...ccuiitiiiiiriinsiinesineinssseeenseanssansssssesnoe 55,136,845 360,906 9,672,557
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. .....cutuieiaaciuirsirensinnresneinesnssresesnsssnsssssesnsseens (4,188,510) 1,393,466 (3,349,673)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
RT3 0 1B o 5,217,654 - -
Proceeds of bonds and NOTES. .....eiv.eeeiiirieriniii s e ssnsrsenesesssseessnnesnnsses - 1,550,000 5,000,000
Premium from issuance of bonds and NOteS. ... .....ovvvvviieririireiiiiseisieiniinns 32,822 - -
Sale of capital @88€ts.............ccccoiiiiiiiii 4,200 - -
Transfers out (937,179) (661,771) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)........ccevivvreenanenn. 4,317,497 888,229 5,000,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. .. couviiiiiiiirriesisissesieiiieiieasiestaiessns 128,987 2,281,695 1,650,327
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. ....0utiuneirnssereeasenseessseseessnnees 8,424,350 1,716,460 (4,333,339)
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR. .....uiiriiiiii et aeaaa $ 8,553,337 % 3,998,155 % (2,683,012)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
-5 33,293,404
- 2,322,056
g 121,016
- 13,998
- 983,100
2,598,324 2,598,324
4,202,699 23,881,760
- 902
= 299,483
- 486,235
- 151,652
101,231 1,490,870
225,176 225,176
12,844 297,889
7,140,274 66,165,865
253,717 2,654,989
884,649 8,518,359
4,844,766 35,894,863
570,115 3,061,598
86,677 912,048
156,273 1,199,095
- 6,140,771
- 6,250,116
- 724,228
- 2,035,338
- 3,065,392
- 1,509,708
6,796,197 71,966,505
344,077 (5,800,640)
903,593 6,121,247
2,262,165 8,812,165
- 32,822
- 4,200
(1,595,644) (3,194,594)
1,570,114 11,775,840
1,914,191 5,975,200
4,966,135 10,773,606
6,880,326 $ 16,748,806

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts
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RECONCILIATION OF TTILE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1'0 THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009

Total governmental fund balances (Page 19).........ccoiiiiiiiieiiiiii e $ 16,748,806

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds..................c..ooooivvevnnns 94,953,331

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the governmental fUnds.............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 12,828,658

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due.............ooovvveiiviiveiriree, (293,333)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes Payable......... ...t (37,134,640)
Compensated ADSEICES. .. ... ...t (2/124,046)
Net OPEB OgLEAMON. .......ieeieiiii et et (2,591,384)

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance
activities. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are reported

as governmental activities in the statement Of NEL ASSELS..............oiiveer i 2,827,784
Net assets of governmental activities (PAge 15).... ... cceuiiiiiiiiiee e $ 85,215,176

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 21)..................ccccviieeriiiiiiieneieeinns $ 5,975,200

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.
Capital Outlays...........oo i e 11,472,185
DePreciation.. ... ..uvuueeiieiiiiseeiriniieesssniiesiesiessieeersniaeis G A R R R SR S (3,294,794)

In the statement of activities, only the gain/(loss) on the disposals of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds the entire proceeds of the disposal are reported as
financial resources. As a result, the change in net assets differs from the change in
fund balance by the net book value of the capital assets disposed................cccocvveeeeeiieveeeinnnnn. (125,390)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(ie. real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue..................cc........ (941,449)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes

the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any

impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts

are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount represents the

related activity of the current period.
BONA PIOCERS 5 smwsassmisicesis s st e S s S S A S e S (8,812,165)
BONA AT O S uwanmpommmmbins o oy s oo SR s T S L G s B S 3,065,392

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable..........cocvivieiiiiieriiiiiereiiiiieeeceeiiiieeee 40,216

Some expenses reported in the statement activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
This amount represents the net change:
COMPENSATEA ADSEIICES. .. ..vviiiiieiie ittt ittt e ettt e e e s s e s e e s e ae st te s et e et e e e e e e enre s (318,669)
INEt OPEB OlLZATION. ... cuuiiitiititiatint ittt e e s e e e e e e s e e s et e e e e st e s e e eee s ee s een (2,591,384)

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance
activities. The net activity of the internal service funds is reported with

ZOVEITIMENTA] ACHVIEIES. 1.1u i iiieiiie e ettt ettt e s s e e e e e e e e e e ee e e e e (973,152)
Changes in net assets of governmental activities (PAge 17)...........cc.vvviriiiiiisi i $ 3,495,990

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
ASSETS Sewer Landfill Total Funds
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVALENES, .......c.o.uvviiiiii e $ 469,167 $ 3,122,508 $ 3,591,675 § 3,191,521
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 102,938 2,164,691 2,267,629 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
USEr CRAIGES. ....ou it e e 127,773 954,520 1,082,293 =
Utility Hems.....vvviiiiiiiiiiicicicecs e e 64,071 - 64,071 -
Special @SSESSIMENTS. . ...ivierieriiir et iiee et va e e e 5,254 - 5,254 =
Intergovernmental... . 50,100 - 50,100 -
Working capital deposit..........c...cvviiiiiiiiiinii e . - - - 1,362,200
TOtal CUITENE ASSEES. .auv vttt it e eeteet et e e e ta e serrs s saee e s v aerereeeens 819,303 6,241,719 7,061,022 4,553,721
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents..... VA RERE - s e e e e n e R et r v st re s dHi - 1,659,793 1,659,793 -
Restricted INVESHMENTS. ...ttt e e et i st earaas - 1,722,266 1,722,266 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Special @SSESSINENES. ... .eur . i uiiiieeiiiniiriiiet e seiisea e e e e e e e e e e sesaeee b 206,078 - 206,078 -
Intergovernmental..........ccoviiiiiiinnneiieii et 169,288 - 169,288 &
Capital assets not being depreciated. ...........ccoevvvviiiiieiiiiiierenieiiiiieiriiinanes - 5,059,077 5,059,077 |
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation..............cccceeriiiiiieeeeeeiiennnn.., 4,390,467 6,638,889 11,029,356 -
Total NONCUITENE ASSEES. .. . ieeivieiirii e e ie v enes 4,765,833 15,080,025 19,845,858 =
B ] 5,585,136 21,321,744 26,906,880 4,553,721
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable..... OO 209,700 244,919 454,619 1,063,336
Accrued payroll.... 1,136 17,711 18,847 -
Accrued INEETeSt........ociviiiairiii e .. 8,275 155,599 163,874 -
Accrued health claims payable.............ccccoevreiiinnenni.L. . - - - 662,601
Compensated aDSENCES. ... .ciiiivuiireiiiies et er e 2,909 11,830 14,739 -
Long-term bonds and notes payable..............cc.c.ooiveiiriiiiiiiiiiiis e 125,850 1,513,000 1,638,850 =
Total current Habiliies. .......oouiiiiiiii i ieesieeeee s e e eeseneres 347,870 1,943,059 2,290,929 1,725,937
Noncurrent liabilities;
Net OPEB OBLGAtON. ... .iiivuiiiiiiir et es s v e e e e e e eseanss 13,632 158,381 172,013 -
Landfill closure.......... - 3,093,428 3,093,428 -
Compensated absences 26,180 106,465 132,645 -
Long-term bonds and notes payable.............c..cooovi 430,273 6,759,000 7,189,273 -
Total noncurrent Habiliies. ............u.iiveiieiin e e e e e 470,085 10,117,274 10,587,359 -
Total Habilities. ........couuiiiiiiaiiiie i e 817,955 12,060,333 12,878,288 1,725,937
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............c.oovivviiiriivrenrreirieeeniis 4,154,909 5,590,657 9,745,566 -
Unrestricted. s st o s R s i v T s L A TR 612,272 3,670,754 4,283,026 2,827,784
TOtAl MEL ASSEES. . .evuieriiiie ittt et et e et e s e e s e e e e eneens $ 4,767,181 § 9,261,411 $ 14,028592 $ 2,827,784

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Landfill Total Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SEIVICOS. . ..coeeiiiieeeiiiiaieeiiii e $ 831,678 $ 8,015,975 $ 8,847,653 % -
Penalties and interest 13,153 - 13,153 -
Employer contributions - - 6,022,438
Employee CONTIbUtIONS. ...uvuvuuvsenssirisiisiiiie e ee e veiaiii s - - - 2,007,479
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.........ocecviieiiiiiiiiiei e 844,831 8,015,975 8,860,806 8,029,917
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of service and administration...............oo.coeeiiiiiiiiiniiievernennn. 457,599 6,368,117 6,825,716 -
Town of Wareham capital assessment 188,478 - 188,478 -
Repairs and maintenance................ccccvvcvvvviiniieiiiinn.n. . 34,517 209,888 244,405 -
De Preciation yummsmssissis s ssisss e s N s e fs il SIS A AT 5 266,797 775,997 1,042,794 -
(@1 (oL DS L o017 S e et SO - 368,797 368,797 -
B DOV e R DRSNS useesonmsss sarnsiisinsinias dussimmmnns s ssbunsbas dovabivans A asTHS - - - 8,689,658
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES. .. cvuviiciivierainiirsimiainneriniensinis 947,391 7,722,799 8,670,190 8,689,658
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....civmiimieiariamiiieeierinassvasssssienns (102,560) 293,176 190,616 (659,741)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental................cooiiiiiiinii 1,822 - 1,822 -
Investment INCOMIE. .. ...oovviuiiii e e 2,847 33,011 35,858 (313,411)
Interest expense..............c.cooeeeeeniinnn. " (11,374) (273,869) (285,243) -
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - (140,252) (140,252) =
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......... (6,705) (381,110} (387,815) (313,411)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS............cooooeviiiiiniiiiinnnn, (109,265) (87,934) (197,199) (973,152)
TRANSFERS
43,300 - 43,300 -
(158,261) (2,811,692) (2,969,953) -
TOTAL TRANSEERS.......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciinc e (114,961) (2,811,692) (2,926,653) -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.........covuoitriirtnenierinininisin e oeeeeeeee s e (224,226) (2,899,626) (3,123,852) (973,152)
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......ccocoiiiiiiiiniiiicii e 4,991,407 12,161,037 17,152,444 3,800,936
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR . ..c...iiciiiiiiiieeeie it $ 4,767,181 § 9,261,411 $ 14,028,592 % 2,827,784

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Landfill Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 838,156 % 8,260,796 § 9,098,952 $ 2,028,079
Receipts from interfund services provided........co.voovvvuviirirrieirersisrrasreisiniimreeeiassnas - - - 6,022,438
Payments to vendors,............. . (336,671) (6,050,976) (6,387,647) -
Payments to employees..... ai (120,163) (1,475,624) (1,595,787} =
Payments for employee benefits.......c..ocoveuiuen... i - - - (8,272,857)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.. .coooiiiiviiiiciiiiiicainiiciiies e 381,322 734,196 1,115,518 (222,340)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers i puusscmsnisnan: - o« STFHCTCAEHS  + »» + + SLTEHFEESEIRRE + 0 o500 HHERTIRHEARTTISS » (01 000 43,300 - 43,300 -
TTANSIES OUEziauusat+ o« EIVEAES TSRS e v e e s oo FHETEEEE oabe i e o SR RRTEE RS B Ten v nnssns ok bESES (158,261) (2,811,692) (2,969,953) -
NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......cooovvvveiiiieneinnn (114,961) (2,811,692) (2,926,653) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and NOes...........cooeeveecrersrvnnsnns ; J 290,000 9,090,000 9,380,000 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets. 2 (7.,800) (2,585,990) (2,593,790)
Principal payments on bonds and notes (223,774) (7,568,000) (7,791,774} -
[NEETESE EXPEMSE. ..ot 1 iiiiurarsiririe oot isie b e eetrbmnn s e ranmannn s es (2,802) (227,593) (230,395) .
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES............... 55,624 (1,291,583) (1,235,959) i«
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
INVESEIMENE INCOMME. ... .ottt iit e ieete e vt a et e e s e et s s e e e e e e ee e s e et eeeeaes 2,847 33,011 35,858 (313,411)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ......coiviimiiiuiiimimniiiisiiencieereennes 324,832 (3,336,068) (3,011,236} (5635,751)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Includes $2,938 and $1,589,458 reported as restricted in the
sewer and landfill enterprise funds, respectively).......cooveivviiriieiiiniiriesviiriieees e 247,273 10,283,060 10,530,333 3,727,272
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $102,938 and $3,824,484 reported as restricted in the
sewer and landfill enterprise funds, respectively)......... F o e SRR e TR RN $ 572,105 % 6,946,992 § 7,519,097 % 3,191,521
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)i. isaiaa:. ... arsii . o assnattenmiaalinsameg $ (102,560) $ 293,176 $ 190,616 $ (659,741)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:
[ =] o3 T T 1T T S 266,797 775,997 1,042,794 -
Changes in assets and liabilities;
Utility liens (25,643) - (25,643) .
User charges, (29,743) 244,821 215,078 -
Special assessments. .. 48,711 - 48,711 =
Working capital deposit - - - 20,600
Warrants payable..........ccovivirnrerrennnniriinnnns i 207,431 (1,058,769) (851,338) 184,789
Accrued payroll (2,284) (17,701) (19,985) -
Landfill closure - 368,797 368,797 -
Accrued health claims payable.. - - - 232,012
Accrued compensated absences. 4,981 (30,506) (25,525) -
Net OPEB obligation 13,632 158,381 172,013 -
Total adjustments. . ... et are s s eresees s e e e eeaes 483,882 441,020 924,902 437,401
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTTIVITIES. ... .cvveiriesessmrssssssesmssssmmesnesseeseessieessenss .5 381,322 § 734,196 $ 1,115,518 $ (222,340)
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental debt subsidies (MWPAT).....coiiiiiiiimiiiiii i i ieieieseaeie e $ 48,340 % - '8 48,340 § =

See notes to basic financial statements.,
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009
Private
Purpose Agency
ASSETS Trust Funds Fund
Cash and cash equivalents...............c.oooccoiiiiii e, $ 28,242 $ 371,735
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable.............ccoviiiiiiiiiiiii e - 8,635
Accrued payroll... ... - 310
Liabilities due depositors.............ccccvevvivirviieiineeeiinsiiiiiinnin, - 362,790
Total liabilities..............ccoooiiiii - 371,735
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for other purposes................ccccccoeiiiiiiniinneninnnn. $ 28,242 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Private
Purpose
—izusifunds
ADDITIONS
Net investment income;
Interest... ... $ (2,182)
DEDUCTIONS
Ot 450
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS. ...t (2,632)
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........ooviiiiieiiieiie e, 30,874
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR. ...t $ 28,242

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town of Bourne, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board of
Selectmen.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as
other organizations for which the nature and/ or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town'’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. It has been
determined that there are no component units that require inclusion in the basic financial statements.

[oint Venture

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control mean that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the costs, risks
and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general
public or specified recipients.

Upper Cape Cod Regional Technical School

The Town is indirectly liable for the Upper Cape Cod Regional Technical School’s (School) debt and other
expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of operating and capital costs. The Town'’s fiscal year 2009
assessment totaled approximately $1,501,000. Separate audited financial statements of the School may be
obtained by contacting the School at 220 Sandwich Road, Bourne, Massachusetts 02532.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental
activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Internal service funds and fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include the following:

» Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

» Grants and contributions which are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a specific
function or segment.

» Grants and contributions which are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a specific function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct

costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The community preservation fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 3% local real estate tax surcharge
on nonexempt property (and matching state trust fund distribution) that can be used for open space, historic
resource and affordable housing purposes. Property exempt from the surcharge consists of the first $100,000 of
all residential property and also property owned by low income or seniors with a low or moderate income as
defined by Massachusetts Department of Revenue (DOR) guidelines. Disbursements from this fund must
originate from the Community Preservation Committee and be approved by Town Meeting.

The elementary school construction fund is a capital projects fund used to account for construction of the Bournedale
elementary school.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital projects
funds or permanent funds) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specified
purposes.

The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities (other than those financed by enterprise funds).

The permanent fund is used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support governmental programs.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary funds are reported:

The sewer enterprise fund is used to account for the sewer activities.

The landfill enterprise fund is used to account for the landfill activities.

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts 31 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Addilionally, the [ollowing proprietary fund type is reported:

The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other
departments or governmental units. This fund is used to account for risk finaricing activities related to
employees’ health insurance.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the government’s programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private

organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Such assets consist primarily of
performance bonds and student activity funds. Agency funds do not present the results of operations or have a
measurement focus.

E. Deposits and Investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value, which is determined based on quotations from a national securities
exchange.

F. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, respectively.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor’s for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on August 1, November 1%, February 15t and May 1t and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed annually after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Community Preservation Surcharges

Community preservation surcharges are levied annually and at a rate of 3% of residents’ real estate tax bills with
exemptions for the first $100,000 of residential property and property owned by qualified persons with low
income and seniors (60+) with low or moderate income as defined by DOR guidelines. The surcharge is due with
the real estate tax on August 1%, November 1%, February 15t and May 1t and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Overdue surcharges are included on the tax liens processed on
delinquent real estate taxes. Surcharges are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy.

User Charges

Sewer

Sewer user charges are levied semi-annually based on a flat fee determined by the sewer commissioners and are
subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Sewer liens are processed
annually and are included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Sewer charges and liens are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy.

Landfill

Landfill user charges are assessed as activity occurs and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Special Assessments

Special assessments consist of septic, sewer and street betterments and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal
year accrued.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables primarily consist primarily of ambulance accounts receivable and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

G. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

Personal property taxes

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
User charges (landfill)
Departmental and other

VVVY

At June 30, 2009 the allowance related to personal property taxes is immaterial and therefore not reported.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and arc considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

Real estate taxes and tax liens
Community preservation surcharges
Special assessments

User charges (sewer)

YVVVY

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100% collectible,
H. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not reported.

1. Restricted Assets

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.
Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

J. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist of land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements,
machinery and equipment and infrastructure (e.g., roads, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $5,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Land improvements.................. 5-40
Buildings and improvements...... 15-40
Machinery and equipment......... 3-10
Infrastructure......................... 20-50
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asscts or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are trealed as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.
K. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as “internal
balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

L. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

M. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of

accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

N. Net Assets and Fund Fquity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Assets)

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.

Net assets have been “restricted” for the following:

“Community preservation” represents amounts restricted for open space, historic resource and affordable
housing purposes.

“Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

“Other specific purposes” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Fund balances are reserved for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that
are subject to change.

Fund balances have been “reserved for” the following:

“Encumbrances and continuing appropriations” represents amounts obligated under purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for expenditures that are being carried over to the ensuing fiscal year.

“Perpetual permanent funds” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be
expended.

“Other specific purposes” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.
Fund balances have been “designated for” the following:

“Stabilization” represents amounts accumulated for general and/or capital purposes, which is subject to Town
Meeting approval.

“Subsequent year’s expenditures” represents amounts appropriated for the fiscal year 2010 operating budget.
O. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

GCovernmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.

P. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from proprietary funds is retained in the funds.
Q. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

R. Post Retirement Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits and as more fully described in Note 13, the Town provides health
insurance coverage for retired employees and their spouses.

S. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.
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Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which has full
authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.
Increases subsequent to the approval of the annual budget require Special Town Meeting approval.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for an
appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether such
amounts are appropriated.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The
original fiscal year 2009 approved budget for the general fund authorized approximately $52,795,000 in
appropriations and other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2009, supplemental appropriations totaling
approximately $1,471,000 were authorized.

The Accountant’s office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.

B. Fund Deficits

At June 30, 2009, the following fund deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source
Elementary school construction (major fund)...... $ 2,683,012 Bond proceeds and state grant
Various capital projects.................cccooeviinnn. 1,966,638 Bond proceeds
School, SPED 94-142.........cocoiciiviviniinencieinnn, 96,500 State grant
Conservation pond hens cove...................c..0s 30,500 Available funds
State 911 incentive grant.............c...oc.ccoeivinnns 29,667 State grant
Mainstreet streetscape project..................o...... 26,965 Available funds
Police patrolmens detail revolving.................... 16,349 Available funds

C. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, expenditures and encumbrances and continuing appropriations exceeded

appropriations for school department (education) and debt service (interest) expenditures. These over-
expenditures will be funded by available funds during fiscal year 2010.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer’s investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is
the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of permanent funds and private purpose trust funds are held
separately from other Town funds.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2009, $3,153,784 of the
Town’s bank balance of $23,854,462 was uninsured and exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The Town's investments at June 30, 2009 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type,
with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasuries............cccoeevveenennn.. $ 155,298 § 101,188 % 54,110 $ -
US. Agencies..........ccoovviviiniiinnnn. 1,344,766 364,828 598,469 381,470
Corporate bonds......................... 118,223 118,223 - -
Money market mutual funds......... 304,227 304,227 - -
Mutual bond funds...................... 4,299,267 4,299,267 - -
External investment pools............. 4,334,867 4,334,867 - -

Total debt securities................... 10,556,648 $ 9,522,600 % 652,579 $ 381,470
Other Investments:
Equity securities............c.ccevvvnnnnn 1,128,560
Equity mutual funds.................... 561,200

Total other investments............... 1,689,760
Total investments........................ $ 12,246,408
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Noncompliance with the Municipal l'inance Laws of the Communwealth

The restricted investments of the landfill enterprise fund, totaling $1,722,266, are invested in a mutual bond fund
($1,042,219), equity securities ($643,085) and commodities ($36,962). These types of investments are prohibited by
the municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth. Upon sale, call or maturity of these investments, the proceeds
from the related transactions will be reinvested in compliance with the municipal finance laws.

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. At June 30, 2009, the Town's
investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Held by

Fair Held by Counterparty's

Investment Type Value Counterparty Trust or Agent

U.S. Treasuries.............cccccveevnenn.. $ 155,298 $ - % 155,298
U.S. Agencies...............ccoeeenennn, 1,344,766 - 1,344,766
Corporate bonds......................... 118,223 “ 118,223
Money market mutual funds......... 304,227 - 304,227
Mutual bond funds...................... 1,667,560 1,042,219 625,341
Equity securities............c..ccceiennis 1,128,560 643,085 485,475
Equity mutual funds.................... 561,200 - 561,200
TOEELL i i BRI v v e ereeens $ 5,279,834 $ 1,685,304 $ 3,594,530

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30, 2009, the credit
quality ratings of the Town's debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings *

Fair
Investment Type Value AA Unrated
Corporate bonds........................ $ 118,223 % 118,223 $ -
Money market mutual funds........ 304,227 = 304,227
Mutual bond funds.................... 4,299,267 - 4,299,267
External investment pools........... 4,334,867 - 4,334,867
Total...oviveeiiiiiiie e, $ 9,056,584 $ 118,223 % 8,938,361

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor’s (a national credit rating organization)
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Investments - Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that fluctuations in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit. The Town does not have a policy for foreign currency risk. As of June 30, 2009, the
Town'’s investments were not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Town'’s investment in a single
issuer. The Town does not have a policy for concentration of credit risk. As of June 30, 2009, the Town was not

exposed to concentration of credit risk.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2009, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor, internal service, and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes.........
Real estate tax deferrals...............................
Tax and utility liens.......................ccoo,
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.............
Community preservation surcharges.............
Special assessments. ..o,
Departmental and other..............................
Intergovernmental.........................oc e,

$

Allowance
Gross for Net

Amount Uncollectibles Amount
1,694,572 % - % 1,694,572
54,187 = 54,187
402,552 o 402,552
450,266 (122,827) 327,439
44,590 - 44,590
254,919 = 254,919
765,475 (322,180) 443,295
10,263,130 . 10,263,130

13,929,691 % (445,007) $ 13,484,684

At June 30, 2009, receivables for the sewer and landfill enterprise funds consist of the following:

Receivables:
User charges..............cccoooviviiiiiii,
Utility liens.............cooooeiiinii,
Special assessments. .............ccceeiiiiiiiieiaaiin.
Intergovernmental....................cooeen .

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts
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Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount

1,118,293 % (36,000) $ 1,082,293
64,071 - 64,071
211,332 = 211,332
219,388 = 219,388
1,613,084 $ (36,000) $ 1,577,084
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Governmental funds report deferred revenue in conneclion with receivables and vlher assels (lax foreclosures) for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following
identifies the various components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds:

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Receivable type:

Real estate and personal property taxes.................... $ 1,466,035 $ - $ 1,466,035
Real estate tax deferrals................coocooveiiiviiniiniiinnn, 54,187 - 54,187
Tax Hens........oovviii 394,037 8,515 (a) 402,552
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...........c.covvvnvnn.. 327,439 - 327,439
Community preservation surcharges........................ - 44,590 (a) 44,590
Special assesSMeNts.............ccoovvveviiiiiiineiinnieiinn. 7,224 247,695 (b) 254,919
Departmental and other......................... = 443,295 (b) 443,295
Intergovernmental (state school construction)............ 8,076,844 1,238,305 (c) 9,315,149
Tax foreclosures i v s e s 520,492 - 520,492

Total....cooii $ 10,846,258 $ 1,982,400 $ 12,828,658

(a) Community Preservation Fund (Major Fund)
(b) Nonmajor Governmental Funds
(c) Elementary School Construction Fund (Major Fund)

The Commonwealth has approved school construction assistance to the Town. The assistance program, which is
administered by the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA), provides resources for future debt service
of general obligation school construction bonds outstanding. During fiscal year 2009, approximately $1,058,000 of
such assistance was received. Approximately $12,699,000 will be received in future fiscal years. Of this amount,
approximately $4,622,000 represents reimbursements of long-term interest costs, and approximately $8,077,000
represents reimbursement of approved construction costs. Accordingly, an $8,076,844 intergovernmental
receivable and corresponding deferred revenue have been reported in the general fund in the governmental
funds financial statements. The deferred revenue has been recognized as revenue in the conversion to the
government-wide financial statements.

The Town is currently in the process of constructing the Bournedale Elementary School, which is accounted for in
the major elementary school construction fund. Approximately $19,900,000 has been spent on the project at June
30, 2009, for which short-term debt totaling $4,000,000 is outstanding. The remainder of the project will be
funded via long-term debt and the receipt of funds from the MSBA.

As of June 30, 2009, the MSBA has provided reimbursements totaling approximately $10,266,000, which
represents a portion of the grant award allotted for the project. The maximum reimbursements allowable under
the grant total approximately $15,586,000, which represents 61.67% of the maximum allowable costs totaling
approximately $25,245,000. At June 30, 2009, an intergovernmental receivable of approximately $1,966,000 has
been recorded for unreimbursed costs.
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Total capital assets not being depreciated......

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements................cccoeeeiivineninnnnn.
Buildings and improvements...........................
Machinery and equipment....................oooee.
Infrastructure. ...

Total capital assets being depreciated...........

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements............cccc.cceiiiiinnniinnniin,
Buildings and improvements...........................
Machinery and equipment..........c....c.....coo .
Infrastructure..............coooii

Total accumulated depreciation..................

Total capital assets being depreciated, net...............

Total governmental activities capital assets, net

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
25,849,345 $ - % - 05 25,849,345
13,176,739 9,813,661 (8,155) 22,982,245
39,026,084 9,813,661 (8,155) 48,831,590
2,626,033 282,052 - 2,908,085
59,021,969 71,795 - 59,093,764
11,719,798 1,225,041 (1,679,837) 11,265,002
4,187,563 87,791 4,275,354
77,555,363 1,666,679 (1,679,837) 77,542,205
(315,285) (129,268) - (444,553)
(20,565,861) (1,936,611) . (22,502,472)
(7,789,486) (1,094,397) 1,554,447 (7,329,436)
(1,009,485) (134,518) (1,144,003)
(29,680,117) (3,294,794) 1,554,447 (31,420,464)
47,875,246 (1,628,115) (125,390) 46,121,741
86,901,330 % 8,185,546 % (133,545) % 94,953,331
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activity- Sewer Enterprise :
Capital assets being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment................ccoeovinnnnn. $ 781,841 7,800 % (83.818) & 705,823
Oher. .. 1,332,118 - 4 1,332,118
Infrastructure.......oooo i 7,326,791 - - 7,326,791
Total capital assets being depreciated........... 9,440,750 7,800 (83,818) 9,364,732
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery and equipment..................oooeeeiennn, (745,255) (11,513) 83,818 (672,950)
OBhEE .. e (1,122,494) (69,875) - (1,192,369)
Infrastruchure....o...oooe v (2,923,537) (185,409) - (3,108,946)
Total accumulated depreciation................... (4,791,286) (266,797) 83,818 (4,974,265)
Total sewer enterprise capital assets, net................. $ 4,649,464 % (258,997) % - 5 4,390,467
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activity- Landfill Enterprise :
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land.. ..o, $ 2,209,658 & - % - % 2,209,658
Construction in progress.............cooeeveieeeivnnnnn., 3,554,059 1,879,955 (2,584,595) 2,849,419
Total capital assets not being depreciated....., 5,763,717 1,879,955 (2,584,595) 5,059,077
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements............coevvvveeerinniiiinnnnnnn. 415,809 - - 415,809
Buildings and improvements........................... 11,755,465 3,065,806 (5,900) 14,815,371
Machinery and equipment..................ccoeeeen 5,530,387 377,317 (788,811) 5,118,893
Total capital assets being depreciated........... 17,701,661 3,443,123 (794,711) 20,350,073
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements..................ccooo o, (233,695) (23,734) - (257,429)
Buildings and improvements........................... (9,734,428) (349,622) 5,900 (10,078,150)
Machinery and equipment......................oovne.. (3,621,523) (402,641) 648,559 (3,375,605)
Total accumulated depreciation................... (13,589,646) (775,997) 654,459 (13,711,184)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net............... 4,112,015 2,667,126 (140,252) 6,638,889
Total landfill enterprise capital assets, net............... $ 9,875,732 % 4,547,081 % (2,724,847) $ 11,697,966
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Depreciation expense was charged (o funclions/ programs of the primary govertunenl as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government................cccccoeeiiiinnnnnnn. $ 136,314
Public safety..............oocoooiiiiii . 529,183
Education..........ccoviviiviiiniiiii 1,859,648
Public works..........coiiieiiiiiii, 402,479
Health and human services........................... 3,739
Culture and recreation................ccoieviviinnninnn, 363,431
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities........ $ 3,294,794

Business-Type Activities:

SeWEls.o.. £.0.. 5.5 . .. 75 0. . 77 £7. 7T L, W0, WL $ 266,797
Landfill..........cooooviiii 775,997
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities........ $ 1,042,794

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor Sewer
General Governmental Enterprise
Transfers Out: Fund Funds Fund Total
General Fund.............................. $ - 5 903,593 $ 33586 % 937,179 (1)
Community Preservation Fund....... 661,771 - - 661,771 (2)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds...... 1,585,930 - 9,714 1,595,644 (3)
Sewer Enterprise Fund.................. 158,261 - - 158,261 (4)
Landfill Enterprise Fund................ 2,811,692 - - 2,811,692 (5)
Tt comwsmmmarmaeas $ 5217654 % 903,593 % 43,300 % 6,164,547

(1) Represents transfers to the stabilization ($887,462), sewer enterprise ($33,586) and capital stabilization
($16,131) funds.

(2) Represents transfer to fund debt service.

(3) Represents transfers to fund a portion of the fiscal year 2009 operating budget from the ambulance ($895,000),
waterways improvements ($341,000), impact aid ($243,473), community septic management program ($30,505),
conservation commission receipts reserved ($30,000) and Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement trust reserve
($9,714) special revenue funds. Also represents unbudgeted transfers from special revenue funds related to
insurance recoveries for repairs paid for in the general fund ($45,952).
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(4) Represents transfer of indirect costs

(5) Represents transfer of indirect costs ($2,295,561) and the host community fee ($516,131).

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

o Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

» Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,

respectively.

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is as follows:
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Notes Payable - Governmental Funds

Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at

Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
BAN Elementary School.............cccooeevniiiiinininnnn. 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% §$ 5,000,000 $ - % (5000000) % -
BAN MPL of 2008 Turf Fields......... : 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 1,550,000 - (1,550,000) -
BAN  School Technology Plan............ccc.cccevviiiinnnns 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 200,000 - (200,000) -
BAN DPW Packer Truck..........oooeeviiiiiinnniiniiecninn, 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 160,000 (160,000) -
BAN  Fire Department Rescue Truck........................ 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 145,000 - (145,000) -
BAN DPW Dump TrucK.........ccoveviviveiiieeniainnnn, 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 122,768 - (122,768) -
BAN  DPW Dump Truck......ccocooeiiiiiiiiiiiiaeirecenennne 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 122,768 - (122,768) -
BAN  Wireless NetWOTK. ..........o.ovcvverevriricrarrinns 1/30/08  1/30/09 3.00% 70,000 = (70,000) -
BAN School Water Heater Replacement................... 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 50,000 - (50,000) -
BAN  School MIMi-bUS............cvveveriveriaieesiiaenins 1/30/08  1/30/09 3.00% 42,000 - (42,000) -
BAN DNR pump-out boat.. .. 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 40,000 - (40,000) -
BAN  Fire Department pick up truck................cveeees 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 40,000 - (40,000) -
BAN DPW pick up truck.............ocoviiiiiiiiiiniinn 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 30,000 - (30,000) -
BAN DNR boiler replacement at marina.................. 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 24,000 - (24,000) -
BAN  Fire Station remodeling...............ccoeeeeeninnicn, 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 20,000 - (20,000) -
BAN  POlice generator...........oc.ovvvvveveerriiieiesnens . 1/30/08  1/30/09 3.00% 19,000 = {19,000) -
BAN Elementary School...........ccocoovvvvieiniinnniiina . 1/30/09 9/29/09 1.50% - 5,000,000 (5,000,000) -
BAN MPL of 2008 Turf Fields.................ccovvneneeen. 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% . 1,550,000 (1,550,000) -
BAN  School Technology Plan.............c..vcoveiernnnninn 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 200,000 (200,000) -
BAN DPW Packer Truck................ .. 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% 160,000 (160,000) -
BAN Fire Department Rescue Truck.........ccooeervnrennn. 1/30/09 9/29/09 1.50% - 145,000 (145,000} -
BAN DPW Dump Truck.........c.cooviiciviniiieinan 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 122,768 (122,768) -
BAN  DPW Dump Truck.............cccvimriiicnnninnnn, 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% = 122,768 (122,768) -
BAN  Wireless Network............ccccociiviiniinnn, 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 70,000 (70,000) -
BAN School Water Heater Replacement................... 1/30/09 9/29/09 1.50% - 50,000 (50,000) -
BAN  School Mini-bus........cc..coovven v 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 42,000 (42,000) -
BAN DNR pump-out boat.................... .. 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 40,000 (40,000) -
BAN  Fire Department pick up truck..............ovvves 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 40,000 (40,000) -
BAN  DPW pick up truck........ccoovovevovierirarensenan, 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 30,000 (30,000 -
BAN DNR boiler replacement at marina.................. 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 24,000 (24,000) -
BAN  Fire Station remodeling....................c.cc.cc..... 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% . 20,000 (20,000) -
BAN  SWEEPET.....ivemvcrieececieeceerececeitees s 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% . 185,000 (185,000) -
BAN Upgrade High School Security System............. 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 150,000 (150,000) -
BAN  Police CIUISETS. ... .covvveerieririeerererier i aninns 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% = 111,009 (111,009) -
BAN  High School Remodeliig..................c..cco....... 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% 91,370 (91,370) -
BAN Pump Out Boat 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% - 10,000 (10,000) -
BAN Elementary School/Early Childhood Center..... 6/24/09  9/29/09 1.25% - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
BAN T-5 Dump Truck... 9/29/08 9/29/09 4.00% - 125,000 (125,000) -
BAN T-8 Dump Truck 9/29/08  9/29/09 4.00% 125,000 (125,000) -
BAN Catch Basin Cleaner..............cocococvvvnriiniinnnn.n. 9/29/08  9/29/09 4.00% - 125,000 (125,000) -
BAN System Upgrade Hardware............................ 9/29/08 9/29/09 4.00% - 227,250 (227,250) -
BAN Pump Out Boat.........ccccuniiiiiiiiiiiciiiiciciinns 9/29/08  9/29/09 4.00% - 46,000 (46,000) -

Total.vviiiiiic $ 7,635536 $ 12,812,165 § (16,447,701} $ 4,000,000
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Nates Payabhle - Futerprise Funds

Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at

Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009
BAN MPL of 2008 ISWM Recycling Center............... 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% §$ 1,050,000 $ - % (1,050,000) %
BAN MPL of 2008 ISWM Plans...............cccoeenniennnn. 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 350,000 - (350,000)
BAN MPL of 2008 Sewer TrucK...........cccovcvererirnnnnns 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 25,000 - (25,000)
BAN  MPL of 2008 Sewer Pumps & Panels................ 1/30/08 1/30/09 3.00% 20,000 - (20,000)
BAN ISWM Recycling Center.................co.ccoovon.... 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% : 1,050,000 (1,050,000)
BAN ISWM Plans...........cc.oooivviiniocinieniinioennn 1/30/09  9/29/09 1.50% . 350,000 (350,000)
BAN  Sewer Truck.......cocooovviviniiinnnivinin s 1/30/09 9/29/09 1.50% - 25,000 (25,000)
BAN Sewer Pumps & Panels...............oooeeeiiiiennnn, 1/30/09 9/29/09 1.50% - 20,000 (20,000)
BAN ISWM Departmental Equipment..................... 1/30/09 9/29/09 1.50% - 345,000 (345,000)
BAN Sewer Replace Pumps & Panels...................... 9/29/08 9/29/09 4.00% - 100,000 (100,000)
BAN Landfill - Phase IA/IITA, Area I Capping......... 9/29/08  9/29/09 4.00% - 2,200,000 (2,200,000)
BAN Landfill Rep. Komatsu 155A Dozer.................. 9/29/08 9/29/09 4.00% - 600,000 (600,000)

o $ 1445000 $ 4,690,000 $ (6135000) $

Subsequent Events

On September 15, 2009, the Town issued $13,502,165 of general obligation bonds. The proceeds of the bonds were
used to retire $13,502,165 of BAN's outstanding at June 30, 2009. Accordingly, these amounts have been
reclassified to long-term debt at June 30, 2009.

On September 29, 2009, the Town renewed the outstanding BAN totaling $4,000,000. The BAN accrues interest at
a rate of 0.69% and matures on September 29, 2010.

On December 23, 2009, the Town issued BAN’s in the amount of $1,624,000. The BAN’s accrue interest at a rate of
0.79% and mature on September 29, 2010. The BAN's were issued for road repairs, equipment, high school
technology upgrades, high school remodeling and other remodeling.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Chapter 44, Section 10, of the MGL authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the equalized valuation. Debt
issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being “inside the debt limit”. However, debt

may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt, when issued, is designated as being
“outside the debt limit”.
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Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2009, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable - Governmental Funds

Outstanding Outstanding
[nterest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Rate 2008 Issued Redeemed 2009

SEWET . ... it 6.00% $ 147,450 § - % (49,150) $ 98,300
MWPAT Pool 9 97-1038-1.......c...oivieriinrnnnnnnn. 0.00% 156,416 - (9,842) 146,574
MWPAT Title V 97-1038.........ccovvvviniiiinnennnn, 0.00% 135,001 - (10,400) 124,601
MWPAT Pool 11 T5-97-1038-2............c0vvvnnnnn.. 0.00% 180,000 - (10,000) 170,000
School Project Refunding..........c.cccooiviiiiviinnnn, 4.84% 365,000 - (365,000) =
School Project Refunding................ccoeveeninnnne, 4.90% 23,000 - (14,000) 9,000
Building Construction - School Refunding........ 4.92% 62,000 - (36,000) 26,000
Tennis Courts...........ccoiieiiiieiiii v, 4.73% 8,000 - (2,000) 6,000
Town Hall Repair..........cccoooviiiiiniiiniriinin 5.02% 764,000 - (96,000) 668,000
Coady Roof.........ooviviiiii i 5.05% 33,000 - (18,000} 15,000
School......i 5.01% 13,390,000 - (1,030,000) 12,360,000
Community Center...........cccooveveiviiiiiiinnieniinns 3.55% 3,692,000 - (257,000) 3,435,000
Land for Community Center.............c...ccooee., 3.47% 248,000 - (20,000) 228,000
Police Remodeling...........c.c.ccocvviiiinniininiiinn, 2.97% 36,000 - (6,000) 30,000
Library Roof............cooooiiiii s 3.19% 124,000 B (14,000) 110,000
Land Acquisition................ccocoivniiinnnnn 3.52% 1,017,000 - (74,000) 943,000
Land Acquisition...........c.ooovvvieiininiiiennin e, 3.53% 1,722,000 - (123,000) 1,599,000
Land Acquisition...............ccooo 3.57% 788,000 - {53,000) 735,000
Police Station Roof..............c..ccoiii e, 2.50% 20,000 - (10,000) 10,000
Land Acquisition............cccccoeevnriiiiniinnnnn i, 3.87% 2,500,000 E (150,000) 2,350,000
RoAdS. ..o 3.45% 20,000 - (10,000) 10,000
School Plans..........coooiiiiiiii 3.85% 310,000 - (20,000) 290,000
Municipal Purpose Loan...............c..cooveennnnnn. 4.25% 5,547,000 - (588,000) 4,959,000
Municipal Purpose Loan..............cccoooeivieennnen. 3.14% - 8,812,165 - 8,812,165
Total governmental funds.............cccoeovniin $ 31,387,867 % 8,812,165 $ (3.065,392) $ 37,134,640
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in futurc fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2010.......... $ 3,460,558 $ 1,361,747 $ 4,822,305
2011.......... 3,374,392 1,235,640 4,610,032
2012.......... 3,183,242 1,120,241 4,303,483
2013.......... 2,817,242 1,016,863 3,834,105
2014.......... 2,638,301 909,656 3,547,957
2015.......... 2,623,444 801,735 3,425,179
2016.......... 2,613,444 693,311 3,306,755
2017.......... 2,383,444 595,414 2,978,858
2018.......... 2,350,444 504,161 2,854,605
2019.......... 2,315,444 411,277 2,726,721
2020.......... 2,304,817 317,802 2,622,619
2021.......... 2,304,617 224,262 2,528,879
2022 ;i 1,174,417 131,998 1,306,415
2023.......... 859,417 96,842 956,259
2024.......... 624,417 70,286 694,703
2025.......... 615,000 48,430 663,430
2026.......... 455,000 26,435 481,435
2027.......... 401,000 13,597 414,597
2028.......... 386,000 2,655 388,655
2029.......... 250,000 - 250,000
Total.......... $ 37,134,640 $ 9,582,351 % 46,716,991
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Bonds and Notes Payable - Enterprise Funds

Outstanding Outstanding
Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Rate 2008 Issued Redeemed 2009

MWPAT Sewer 91-21............oiiiiiiiinennn. 0.00% % 425200 $ - $ (72,372) § 352,828
MWPAT Sewer 93-15..............ciiiii, 3.60% 66,277 - (7,982) 58,295
Landfill Water Supply................oooiiennnn, 5.01% 100,000 - (50,000) 50,000
Landfill Water Main................cc.ooooeeiiiiiiinnnn. 5.05% 48,000 - (7,000) 41,000
Landfill Road................c.ooooiin e, 5.01% 12,000 - (12,000) -
Landfill Phase 3............ccccccciiiiiinniiinin, 2.77% 286,000 - (286,000) -
Plans & Capping Landfill............................... 2.76% 141,000 - (141,000) -
Landfill Plans...............ccociiiii . 2.77% 46,000 - (46,000} -
Plans for Landfill Processing Center................. 2.51% 40,000 - (20,000) 20,000
Landfill Phase IIL..............oooeeiiiiiiiininnnieni, 2.51% 560,000 - (280,000) 280,000
Landfill Phase I1...............ooeeviiiiiiin . 2.51% 38,000 - (19,000) 19,000
Plans for Landfill Processing Center................. 2.51% 92,000 Z (46,000) 46,000
Landfill Bailing Equipment............................. 2.51% 120,000 - (60,000) 60,000
Landfill Liner..............c.cooee i, 3.77% 2,400,000 - (300,000) 2,100,000
ISWM Compactor.............ccoeniiiiiniiiiiien i, 4.25% 447,000 - (149,000) 298,000
ISWM Bulldozer..................cccocooiviie . 4.25% 300,000 - (75,000) 225,000
ISWMScale...........oocociiinniii 4.25% 250,000 - (63,000) 187,000
ISWM Landfill Phase 3 Stage 3........................ 3.14% 425,000 - (24,000) 401,000
Sewer Truck................oco 3.14% - 25,000 - 25,000
Sewer Replace Pumps and Panels.................. 3.14% - 20,000 - 20,000
Sewer Replace Pumps and Panels.................... 3.14% - 100,000 - 100,000
ISWM Landfill Phase IA/IIIA Liner................ 3.14% - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
ISWM Komatsu 155A Dozer........................... 3.14% - 600,000 - 600,000
ISWM Gas Generator and App............ccc......... 3.14% - 345,000 - 345,000
ISWM Landfill Processing Center.................. 3.14% - 350,000 - 350,000
ISWM Residential Recycling Center................. 3.14% - 1,050,000 - 1,050,000
Total enterprise funds...............covvevinierinnnn, " $ 5796477 $ 4,690,000 $ (1,658,354) $ 8,828,123
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in future fiscal

years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2010......... 1,638,850 % 137195 § 1,776,045
2011......... 1,160,495 97,962 1,258,457
2012......... 1,010,296 77,188 1,087,484
2013......... 859,255 62,506 921,762
2014......... 559,118 49,359 608,477
2015......... 518,109 36,211 554,320
2016......... 507,000 23,064 530,064
2017......... 202,000 9,943 211,943
2018......... 200,000 9,103 209,103
2019......... 200,000 8,257 208,257
2020......... 200,000 7,407 207,407
2021......... 200,000 6,551 206,551
2022......... 200,000 5,680 205,680
2023......... 200,000 4,798 204,798
2024......... 200,000 3,916 203,916
2025......... 200,000 3,034 203,034
2026......... 200,000 2,146 202,146
2027......... 199,000 1,275 200,275
2028......... 199,000 425 199,425
2029......... 175,000 - 175,000
Total......... 8,828,123 $ 546,017 $ 9,374,140

Subsequent Event

On September 15, 2009, the Town issued $13,502,165 of general obligation bonds. The proceeds of the bonds were
used to retire $13,502,165 of BAN's (related to school construction, landfill closure, landfill projects, sewer projects
and other governmental projects) outstanding at June 30, 2009 that are appropriately classified as long-term debt.

The Town receives subsidy assistance from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT).
Principal and interest on the outstanding bonds for MWPAT is subsidized over the life of the bonds to assist the
Town in the repayment of this future debt. During fiscal year 2009, the Town’s subsidy totaled approximately
$50,000. Future subsidies total approximately $223,000. The amount of MWPAT bonds outstanding at June 30,

2009, totaled $852,000.
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The Town is subject to various debt limits by statutc and may issue additional general obligation debt under the

normal debt limit. At June 30, 2009, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount
Elementary School.............................. $ 15,000,000
Excavator..............cooin, 230,000
Technology Plan...............cccoovvviniennnn. 202,000
Upgrade High School Security System...... 150,000
Ambulance...............ccociin 150,000
Fuel System Upgrade..................ovvvnn. 146,000
Lifepac replacement............................... 130,000
Dump/Sander Truck.................oooeevnveenn, 127,000
Dump/Sander Truck..................oocnnl, 127,000
Replace CAT 906 Mini Loader................. 95,000
Roadside Mower............c.c..oooeeiennnnnnn. 80,000
Generator..............ccoocic 75,000
Replace Ford F550 Container Truck.......... 72,000
Police Crusiers..............ccoeeiviiieiiinniinnn. 70,000
One Ton Dump Truck.................ooo 60,000

AL cvsmmmmsmmss R S $ 16,714,000

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Current
2008 Increases Decreases 2009 Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable............... $ 31,387,867 $ 8812165 $ (3,065392) $ 37,134,640 $ 3,460,558
Net OPEB obligation..................... - 2,591,384 - 2,591,384 -
Compensated absences.................. 1,805,377 318,669 - 2,124,046 212,405
Totaluwanneimimasnar s $ 33193244 $ 11,722,218 $ (3,065392) $ 41,850,070 $ 3,672,963
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable............... $ 579,477 $ 4690000 $ (1,658354) $ 8,828,123 $ 1,638,850
Net OPEB obligation..................... - 172,013 . 172,013 -
Landfill closure........cooevvvvieevnnnnn.. 2,724,631 487,759 (118,962) 3,093,428 -
Compensated absences.................. 172,909 4,981 (30,506) 147,384 14,739
Totaleeeiiiieie $ 8694017 $ 5354753 $ (1,807,822) $ 12,240,948 $ 1,653,589

Except for debt service related to acquisitions by the community preservation fund (major), the governmental

activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE 9 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE

The Town currently operates an active landfill. State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place
a final cover on each landfill cell when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions for 30 years after final closure of the site. Although the majority of closure and postclosure
care costs will be paid only near or after the date that a landfill site stops accepting waste, the Town reports a
portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of each statement of net assets date.

The closure and postclosure care liability consist of the following at June 30, 2009:

Closure:

Phase 2A /3 Aussusimuvsmnsisimmn ey s s s % 1,861,018

Phase 3, Stage 3 South Side............c.ooevviviviinririnnnn. 618,792
Sub-total [IOBHIE) v rievmamviny st 2,479,810

Postclosure Care. . ......o.vvivivvi i 521,368

Transfer station cloSUre............coovvvrevvireieiireeiieiinns 92,250

Total closure and postclosure care liability................ $ 3,093,428

The Phase 2A/3A landfill closure liability represents the cumulative amount reported based on the use of
approximately 54% of the estimated capacity of the cell. The Phase 3, Stage 3 South Side landfill closure liability
represents the cumulative amount reported based on the use of 100% capacity. The postclosure care liability
represents the cumulative amount reported based on the use of 48% of the estimated capacity of the entire
landfill.

Closure and postclosure care costs consist of the following at June 30, 2009:

Closure:

Phase 2A/3A........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 358,532

Phase 3, Stage 3 South Side.........ccccovniiiiiinninianninnns 10,157
Sub-total (closure).........cooooviviiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiins 368,689

Postclosure Care.........vievvieiniiriiieiii e (92,142)

‘Transfer station closurewssmmnmseiaiis s 92,250

Total closure and postclosure care costs.................... $ 368,797

These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2009. Based on
current demographic information and engineering estimates of landfill consumption, the Town expects to close
the landfill in approximately 2024. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes
in regulations. The Town will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of
approximately $6,700,000 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled.

The Town is required by state laws and regulations to meet annual financial assurance requirements. At June 30,
2009, approximately $3,382,000 of funds has been set aside for closure and postclosure care costs.
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NOTE 10 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance.

The Town is self-insured for its health insurance activities. These activities are accounted for in the internal
service fund where revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.

A. Health Insurance

The estimated “Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)” claims are based on actual subsequent activity and historical
trends. The liability at June 30, 2009 totaled $662,601. Changes in the reported liability since July 1, 2007, are as
follows:

Current Year

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-end
Fiscal year 2008...........c...ccooevv, $ 579,314 % 7,427,733 % (7,576,458) $ 430,589
Fiscal year 2009............c..oocoeien. 430,589 8,724,539 (8,492,527) 662,601

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the Barnstable County Retirement Association (the Association), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Barnstable County Retirement
Board. Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the Association, except for public school teachers
and certain administrators who are members of the Commonwealth’s Teachers Retirement System.

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The Association
provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the Barnstable County Retirement Board and are borne by
the Association. The Association issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by
the Commonwealth’s Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 750 Attucks Lane, Hyannis, Massachusetts, 01970.

Funding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members
are required to contribute to the Association at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of annual covered compensation.
The Town is required to pay into the Association its share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution
that is apportioned among the employers based on annual covered payroll. The Town’s contributions to the
Association for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $2,046,604, $1,888,019, and $1,801,969,
respectively, which equaled its required contribution for each fiscal year.
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NOTE 12 - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System,
to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled approximately $4,030,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, and, accordingly, are reported in the
general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.

NOTE 13 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description - The Town provides health and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors
(hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”) as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) plan. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to
plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan
does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of
paying benefits under the Plan.

The number of participants as of June 30, 2008, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees...............cooee. 391
Retired employees and spouses..... 405

Totaluwmsmmsnssemmnmmsm s 796

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town. The required health insurance contribution rates of Plan members and the Town
(including Medicare Part B) are 25% and 75%, respectively. The Plan members and Town each contribute 50%
towards a $5,000 term life insurance premium. The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to
satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Town.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The Town’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the
Town’s net OPEB obligation:
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Amount
(in thousands)

Annual required contribution.......................... $ 4,918,222
Interest on net OPEB obligation........................ =
Adjustment to annual required contribution....... -

ANNUal OPEB COSt. .. iviiiiiiiiiiieiiis e eneanns 4,918,222
Contributions made........coooevviriieiiieinieiiinninnn, (2,154,826)
Increase in net OPEB obligation........................ 2,763,396

Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year.......... =

Net OPEB obligation at end of year................... $ 2,763,396

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the
net pension obligation is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2009*............. $ 4,918,222 438% $ 2,763,396

* Transition year

Funded Status and Funding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 2008, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (3) (B) (B-A) (A/B) © ((B-A)/C)
06/30/08 $ - % 74,937,141 $ 74,937,141 - $ 27,668,817 271%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to

reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.
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The significant methods and assumptions as of thc latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date: June 30, 2008

Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method: Amortization payments increasing at 4.50%

Remaining amortization period: 30 years open

Interest discount rate: 5.00%

Medical/ drug cost trend rate: 10.00% decreasing by 0.75% for 6 years and by 0.50% for 1 year to an

ultimate level of 5.00% per year.
Inflation rate: 4.50%

Allocation of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town’s functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government..........................o.... $ 264,666
Public safety............coooiviiiiiiii 1,128,357
Education..............oocooovviini i 2,793,780
Public works...........cooovviiiin i 235,642
Health and human services........................ 98,455
Culture and recreation......................ooui.. 91,179
Total AOPEBC - governmental activities........... $ 4,612,079

SEWeT... ..., $ 24,262
Landfill.................... 281,881
Total AOPEBC - business-type activities........... $ 306,143
Total AOPEBC.ssiuiusamssaisssuisisrsisnsssnimmam $ 4,918,222

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS
The Town is currently in the process of constructing the Bournedale Elementary School. At June 30, 2009,

approximately $19,900,000 had been spent on the project and approximately $6,000,000 is required to complete
the project.
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NOTE 15 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at
June 30, 2009, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30, 2009.

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2009, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 16~ IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
The Town implemented the following GASB pronouncements during fiscal year 2009:

»  Statement #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. This pronouncement requires the recording of an OPEB liability that relates to the Town's
future liability for current and future retirees and their spouses for benefits other than pensions, such as
health insurance. The statement is recorded prospectively in the first year of implementation. Details
relating to the Town’s OPEB liability and its calculation are provided at Note 13.

»  Statement #49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. The
implementation of this Statement had no impact on the basic financial statements.

tatement #52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments. The implementation of this

> Statement #52,
Statement had no impact on the basic financial statements.

NOTE 17 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUCEMENTS
The GASB has issued the following statements:

> Statement #51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, which is required to be
implemented during fiscal year 2010. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will
have on its basic financial statements.

» Statement #53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, which is required to be
implemented during fiscal year 2010. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will
have on its basic financial statements.

» Statement #54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which is required to be
implemented during fiscal year 2011. The Town is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will
have on its basic financial statements.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts 59 Basic Financial Statements



This page left intentionally blank.

60



Required Supplementary Information

61



GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Prior Year
Encumbrances Supplemental
and Continuing Original Appropriations Final
Appropriations Budget and Transfers Budget
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes.......................... $ - % 33,370,055 $ - 5 33,370,055
Motor vehicle and other excise taxeS...........ccccoeevverveviinss - 2,226,000 - 2,226,000
Tax liens cui sttty mvninsniniivnmsa s - - - -
Payments in lieu of taxes........civeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin. - 23,000 - 23,000
Intergovernmental ... - 9,208,529 - 9,208,529
Special assessments... e - - - -
Penalties and interest on taxes...............c.coovevvnviiineennn. - 196,000 - 196,000
Licenses and permils................ccoooviiviininnviiinnineiiiin . - 496,824 - 496,824
Fines and forfeitures................ooviiiiiiieie i - 120,000 - 120,000
Departmental and other................ccooooviiii . - 1,315,057 - 1,315,057
Investment iNCOMe. .. ... .ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - 376,039 - 376,039
TOTAL REVENUES.........ooiiiiiriiriieiirieiiriniann - 47,331,504 - 47,331,504
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government........ : eed 529,808 2,289,234 206,196 3,025,238
Publicsafety...........c.ocociniiiivini e 576,132 8,336,353 150,000 9,062,485
BAucation............ccoivvraiiiiininaniie e 27,855 21,613,499 130,500 21,771,854
Public works...........ccoiciiiiiiiiniin 51,745 2,482,214 - 2,533,959
Health and human services..............cccovevvvveevinennnn.n, - 830,162 - 830,162
Culture and recreabion................ooovveiiieniiiiiniinn. 80,369 762,208 97,000 939,577
Pension benefits............c.ccooiiiiviiiniiiniiiiioa i, - 2,127,970 = 2,127,970
Employee benefits.............ccccoieiviininiiiiiiiciiiiii - 6,810,250 - 6,810,250
Property and liability insurance - 874,800 - 874,800
State and county charges.............c.ooiiiiiiiiieiieeneeennnsn - 2,037,348 - 2,037,348
Debt service:
Principal - 3,065,392 B 3,065,392
Interest......cooviiiiiiiii i - 1,532,172 - 1,532,172
TOTAL EXPENDITURES............ccvviiieieninnniennn 1,265,909 52,761,603 583,696 54,611,208
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.........ooumiriiiininineiineniennieeiaans (1,265,909) (5,430,099) (583,696) (7,279,704)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers iN........oooiiiiiii e . 5,034,571 121,000 5,155,571
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes...
Sale of capital @ssets...............c.cccccviiiiiniiiiiiicininn - - - -

Transfers out........ooveieiiiiiiiiinn - (33,587) (887,462) (921,049)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).... - 5,000,984 (766,462) 4,234,522

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. ...........cc..ccvcviriioni.. (1,265,909) (429,115) (1,350,158) (3,045,182)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..................... 8,431,141 8,431,141 8,431,141 8,431,141
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR........c..occcviviminrimnnnnnn. $ 7,165,232 $ 8,002,026 $ 7,080,983 % 5,385,959

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Current Year

Actual and

Encumbrances Encumbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Actual Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)
$ 33312846 $ - 33,312,846 (57,209)
2,322,056 - 2,322,056 96,056
117,987 - 117,987 117,987
13,998 - 13,998 (9,002)
8,645,597 - 8,645,597 (562,932)
902 - 902 902
293,890 - 293,890 97,890
486,235 - 486,235 (10,589)
151,652 - 151,652 31,652
1,389,639 - 1,389,639 74,582
203,253 - 203,253 (172,786)
46,938,055 - 46,938,055 (393,449)
2,390,284 365,370 2,755,654 269,584
7,633,710 996,042 8,629,752 432,733
21,377,540 193,133 21,570,673 201,181
2,491,483 20,817 2,512,300 21,659
779,490 7,290 786,780 43,382
738,785 179,718 918,503 21,074
2,111,049 - 2,111,049 16,921
6,250,116 - 6,250,116 560,134
724,228 - 724,228 150,572
2,035,338 = 2,035,338 2,010
3,065,392 - 3,065,392 -
1,534,152 - 1,534,152 (1,980)
51,131,567 1,762,370 52,893,937 1,717,271
(4,193,512) (1,762,370) (5,955,882) 1,323,822
5,217,654 - 5,217,654 62,083
32,822 32,822 32,822
4,200 4,200 4,200
(937,179) - (937,179) (16,130)
4,317,497 - 4,317,497 82,975
123,985 (1,762,370) (1,638,385) 1,406,797
8,431,141 8,431,141 8,431,141 -
$ 8,555,126 6,668,771 % 6,792,756 $ 1,406,797
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PENSION PLAN SCIIEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the Association as a whole, for which the Town is one
participating employer:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (ASSOCIATION)

Actuarial UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (B) (B-A) (A/B) © ((B-A)/C)
01/01/09 $ 520,089,855 $ 966,564,614 $ 446,474,759 53.8% $ 249,971,296 178.6%
01/01/07 517,396,087 825,863,068 308,466,981 62.6% 226,391,633 136.3%
01/01/06 465,637,984 765,747,723 300,109,739 60.8% 215,474,180 139.3%
01/01/04 378,317,300 647,655,411 269,338,111 58.4% 190,614,004 141.3%
01/01/02 362,911,896 553,531,966 190,620,070 65.6% 173,610,557 109.8%
01/01/00 300,396,700 462,462,500 162,065,800 65.0% 152,293,100 106.4%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (ASSOCIATION)

Annually
Required Percentage of
Year Ended  Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)
2003 $ 23,987,345 100
2004 27,650,113 100
2005 30,224,666 100
2006 32,038,146 100
2007 34,360,912 100
2008 36,943,817 100

The following schedule provides information related to the Town's portion of the Association’s ARC:

TOWN SHARE OF ASSOCIATION ARC

Fiscal Year Percentage of Town ARC
Ended ARC as a Percentage of
June 30 ARC Contributed (%) Association ARC (%)

2004 $ 1,377,789 100 5.7%
2005 1,597,572 100 5.8%
2006 1,753,632 100 5.8%
2007 1,801,969 100 5.6%
2008 1,888,019 100 55%
2009 2,046,604 100 5.5%
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATON

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009, is presented below:

Revenues Expenditures
Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual......................ooocii $ 46,938,055 $ 52,893,937
Adjustments
Net change in recording 60-day receipts............................ (24,729) -
Net change in recording tax refunds payable...................... 5,287 -
To record MTRS on-behalf payments..........................oenel, 4,029,722 4,029,722
Net change in recording short-term interest accrual............. - (24,444)
To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations....... - (1,762,370)
GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances........................ $ 50,948,335 % 55,136,845
NOTE B - PENSION PLAN
Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:
Valuation date; January 1, 2009
Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal cost
Amortization method: Payments increase at 4.50% per year after fiscal 2013
Remaining amortization period: 19 years from July 1, 2009 for 2002 and 2003 Early Retirement Incentives
and remaining unfunded liability.
Asset valuation method: 5-year smoothing of investment returns greater (less) than expected
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return: 8.25%
Projected salary increases: 5.00%
Cost of living adjustments: 3.00% of first $12,000 of retirement income
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